

**Agreement Among the Towns of
Abington, Cohasset, Hanover, Hanson, Marshfield, Norwell,
Rockland, Scituate and Whitman, Massachusetts with Respect
to the Establishment of a Vocational Regional High School
District**

Commented [TH1]: Line 2: Comma

This Regional Agreement is entered into pursuant to Chapter 71 of Massachusetts General Laws (MGL) , as amended, by and among the Towns of Abington, Cohasset, Hanover, Hanson, Marshfield, Norwell, Rockland, Scituate, and Whitman (hereinafter sometimes known as “member towns”). The District shall be called the South Shore Regional Vocational School District (hereinafter sometimes known as the “District”).

This revised agreement replaces the previous agreement approved in ~~2023~~2018 and all other agreements or amendments.

Commented [TH2]: Line 14: Updated to reflect change

In consideration of the mutual promises herein contained, it is hereby agreed as follows:

SECTION I – THE REGIONAL VOCATIONAL DISTRICT SCHOOL COMMITTEE

(A) Composition

The District School Committee (hereinafter sometimes known as the “Committee”) shall consist of one member from each member town each with one vote. Each member shall be appointed by the respective Select Board in each member town.

(B) Appointed Members

Not later than June 15 in each year in which the term of a member of the Committee expires, the Select Board of the member town concerned shall appoint one member to serve for a term of three years. The term of each such appointed member shall commence on July 1 of the year in which he or she is appointed.

(C) Vacancies

If a vacancy occurs among the members of the Committee, the Select Board of the member town concerned shall appoint a member to serve for the balance of the unexpired term.

(D) Organization

At the first scheduled meeting after July 1, the Committee shall organize and choose by ballot a chair and a vice chair from among its own membership. At the same meeting, or at any other meeting, the Committee shall appoint a treasurer and secretary, who may be the same person but who need not be members of the Committee, choose such other officers as it deems advisable, determine the terms of office of its officers (except the chair and vice-chair who shall be elected annually) and prescribe the powers and duties of any of its officers, fix the time and place for its regular meetings, and provide for the calling of special meetings.

(E) Powers and Duties

The Committee shall have all the powers and duties conferred and imposed upon it by this Agreement and such other additional powers and duties as are specified in Sections 16 to

16I, inclusive, of MGL Chapter 71 and any amendments thereof or additions thereto now or hereafter enacted, or as may be specified in any other applicable general or special law. In the event that provisions conflict with any MGL, the MGL shall prevail.

(F) Quorum

Unless otherwise specified by law, the quorum for the transaction of business shall be a majority of the Committee, but a number less than the majority may adjourn.

SECTION II – LOCATION OF REGIONAL DISTRICT SCHOOL

The District School (South Shore Regional Vocational Technical High School) shall be located in the Town of Hanover, or any other member town, provided, however, that the Committee may establish and locate satellite facilities in any member town.

SECTION III – TYPE OF REGIONAL DISTRICT SCHOOL

The District School shall be a Vocational High School consisting of grades nine through twelve (9 – 12), inclusive. The Committee is hereby authorized to establish and maintain such kinds of education as may be provided by towns under provisions of MGL Chapter 74 and acts amendatory thereof, in addition thereto or dependent thereon. The Committee may also provide self funding programs beyond the secondary level, either alone or in cooperation with other institutions in accordance with the provisions of MGL Chapter 74, Section 37A, as amended.

SECTION IV – BUDGET

(A) Budget

The Committee shall annually determine the District's budget consistent with the timelines, terms and requirements of MGL Chapter 71, Section 16B, as amended, and other pertinent provisions of law and consistent with regulations promulgated by the Department of Elementary and Secondary Education (hereinafter sometimes known as "DESE").

(B) Public Budget Hearing and Budget Approval

After conducting a public hearing consistent with MGL Chapter 71, Section 38N, as amended, the Committee by a minimum two-thirds (2/3) vote of all its members, shall annually approve an operating budget for the next fiscal year to maintain and operate the District during the next fiscal year. After deducting the amount of aid the District is to receive, the balance shall be apportioned among the several member towns in accordance with Section V.

The budget will be itemized in such detail as the Committee may deem advisable. Such budget shall be adopted not later than forty-five (45) days prior to the earliest date on which the business session of the annual town meeting of any member town is to be held, but in no event later than March 31, provided that said budget need not be adopted earlier than February 1. The amounts so apportioned for each member town shall be certified by the District treasurer to the treasurers of the member towns within thirty (30) days from the date on which the annual operating budget is adopted by the Committee. The Annual Budget, as adopted by a minimum two-thirds (2/3) vote of the Committee's membership, shall then require the approval of two-thirds (2/3) of the local appropriating authorities of

the member towns. If the Annual Budget is not so approved, the Annual Budget shall be established in accordance with the procedures in MGL Chapter 71, Section 16B.

SECTION V – APPORTIONMENT AND PAYMENT OF COSTS INCURRED BY THE DISTRICT

(A) Classification of Costs

For the purpose of apportioning assessments by the District to the member towns, costs shall be divided into **four (4)** categories: operating costs, capital costs, debt, and transportation costs. The Committee shall determine the amount necessary to meet the annual operating, capital, debt, and transportation costs and shall allocate such amount among the member towns.

(B) Operating Costs

(1) Operating costs shall include all costs not included in capital, debt, and transportation costs as defined in Sections V (C), (D), and (E), but shall include interest on temporary notes issued by the District in anticipation of revenue.

(2) Apportionment of Operating Costs

a. The total operating costs assessed to each member town will consist of:

1. its Minimum Local Contribution,
2. its share of any additional Net School Spending (NSS) costs as defined in MGL Chapter 70, as amended, referred to in this section as its “Above Minimum Contribution”, and
3. its share of any non-NSS costs.

b. The aggregate Above Minimum Contribution is arrived at by subtracting from the Net School Spending Operating Budget the following: MGL Chapter 70 aid, the Minimum Required Combined Local Contributions of all member towns, and other general revenue sources to the District.

This formula is illustrated below:

Net School Spending Operating Costs (which excludes capital, debt and transportation)

- Chapter 70 aid (as calculated by DESE)
- Minimum Required Combined Local Contributions of all member towns (as calculated by DESE)
- Other general revenue sources to the District
- = Total Above Minimum Contribution for all member towns

c. Each member town’s proportionate share of the aggregate Above Minimum Contribution and non-NSS operating costs shall be determined based on the number of pupils in grades nine through twelve (9 – 12), inclusive, residing in each member town and receiving education in the South Shore Regional Vocational School District at such town's expense, as reported to the Department

of Elementary and Secondary Education (DESE) in the District's previous October 1st Student Information Management System (SIMS) enrollment submission.

(C) Capital Costs

(1) Capital costs shall include all expenses described in DESE's Chart of Accounts in the 7000-function code.

(2) Apportionment of Capital Costs

Capital costs will be apportioned for the ensuing fiscal year as follows:

Each member town's share of the capital costs shall be determined by computing the ratio which the sum of its October 1st SIMS enrollments of the three fiscal years immediately preceding the year in which the Committee votes to include capital cost in the budget bears to the sum of the October 1st SIMS enrollments of all the member towns of the same three fiscal years. For the purpose of this clause, pupil enrollments shall be defined as the number of pupils in grades nine through twelve (9 – 12), inclusive, residing in each member town and receiving education in the District at such town's expense.

(D) Debt

(1) Debt shall include the payment of principal of and interest on bonds, notes or other obligations of the District to finance such debt.

(2) For the purpose of this section, pupil enrollments used to calculate a member town's debt share shall be defined as the number of pupils in grades nine through twelve (9 – 12), inclusive, residing in each member town and receiving education in the District at such town's expense. Notwithstanding any previous regional agreement language on debt, all member towns' debt shares will follow the provisions of V.D.3 and V.D.4 below. The Town of Marshfield, as a new member effective July 1, 2024, will have its enrollment included in V.D.(3) and V.D.(4) calculations starting with debt share apportionments for the FY33 budget and beyond. Marshfield's debt share formula for FY25-FY32 is outlined in section V.D.(5).b.1-2 below.

~~(23) For the first fiscal year that debt is assessed to member towns, the debt share formula shall be as follows:~~ Each member town's share of the debt incurred, including the payment of principal of and interest on bonds, notes or other obligations of the District to finance such debt, shall be determined by computing the ratio which the sum of October 1st SIMS enrollments in the District on October 1 of the three fiscal years immediately preceding the year in which the member towns vote to authorize the incurring of the debt bears to the sum of the October 1st SIMS enrollments of all the member towns in the District on October 1 of the same three fiscal years. ~~and the ratio shall not be changed during the period in which such bonds, notes or other obligations are outstanding, except as provided in Section VIII.~~

Creating a V.D.(3) scenario for illustration purposes only:

If debt were approved in FY25, and if debt were assessed for the first time in FY26, the enrollments used for the first fiscal year of debt assessments (FY26) would be drawn from the 3 fiscal years preceding the approval (FY25), which would be

Commented [TH3]: Lines 167-170: These lines were originally its own paragraph but the sentence was amended as shows and it was relocated here to start the paragraph.

Changed the word 'clause' to 'section'

Added phrase "used to calculate a member town's debt share" for clarity.

Commented [TH4]: Line 170: Changed on 8.16.24 from "existing" to "previous" for better clarity

Commented [TH5]: Lines 170-171: This sentence directs the reader to the sections that show how debt is apportioned for all member towns but in the following sentence, there is further clarification about Marshfield.

Commented [TH6]: Lines 171-175: Added a new sentence about Marshfield to clarify how their debt share calculation will differ pre/post FY33 and added references to find the language.

Commented [TH7]: Lines 178-179: Added this introductory sentence to make V.D.(3) parallel with V.D.(4) below

Commented [TH8]: Lines 185-187: This removes the "fixed" debt share language

Commented [TH9]: Lines 188-193: This is an illustration of how the language in V.D.(3) would play out in a hypothetical first year with debt payments.

October 1st enrollments from FY24 (10.1.23), FY23 (10.1.22), and FY22 (10.1.21).

<u>FY debt share to be determined</u>	<u>Preceding FY when School Committee certifies budget</u>	<u>Using enrollments from FYs preceding the budget certification</u>
<u>FY26</u> <u>(first year of debt)</u>	<u>FY25</u>	<u>FY24:(10.1.23)</u> <u>FY23:(10.1.22)</u> <u>FY22:(10.1.21)</u>

(4) For the second fiscal year through the final fiscal year that debt is assessed to member towns, the debt share formula shall adjust annually as follows: Each member town's share of the debt incurred, including the payment of principal of and interest on bonds, notes or other obligations of the District to finance such debt, shall be determined by computing the ratio which the sum of October 1st SIMS enrollments in the District on October 1 of the four fiscal years immediately preceding the year in which the Committee votes to include debt cost in the budget bears to the sum of the October 1st SIMS enrollments of all the member towns in the District on October 1 of the same four fiscal years.

Commented [TH10]: Lines 195-202: V.D.4 is where we pivot to a 4 year rolling average, starting in the second year that debt is assessed

Creating a V.D.(4) scenario for illustration purposes only: In this scenario, the district assesses debt shares for 30 years, from FY26 through FY55. The first year of debt shares were based on a "three year look back" (see V.D.(3) and scenario above), and the second year of debt shares and beyond are based on a "four year rolling average".

Commented [TH11]: Lines 204-209: The chart tries to illustrate how fiscal years and enrollment reports are interconnected.

<u>FY debt share to be determined</u>	<u>Preceding FY when School Committee certifies budget</u>	<u>Using enrollments from FYs preceding the budget certification</u>
<u>FY27</u> <u>(second year of debt)</u>	<u>FY26</u>	<u>FY25:(10.1.24)</u> <u>FY24:(10.1.23)</u> <u>FY23:(10.1.22)</u> <u>FY22:(10.1.21)</u>
<u>FY28</u> <u>(third year of debt)</u>	<u>FY27</u>	<u>FY26:(10.1.25)</u> <u>FY25:(10.1.24)</u> <u>FY24:(10.1.23)</u> <u>FY23 (10.1.22)</u>
<u>...The 'four year rolling average', which started in FY27 (the second year of debt share), would continue to adjust annually through FY55, with the oldest enrollment rolling off and the most recent enrollment rolling into the calculation...</u>		
<u>FY55 (thirtieth and final year of debt)</u>	<u>FY54</u>	<u>FY53:(10.1.52)</u> <u>FY52:(10.1.51)</u> <u>FY51:(10.1.50)</u> <u>FY50 (10.1.49)</u>

(53) Admission of the Town of Marshfield Transition into the District

- a. Marshfield ~~will be contributing~~ a 17.95 % share of \$2,184,851, which represents the anticipated balance in the South Shore Regional Vocational School District stabilization fund as of July 1, 2022. The total amount of Marshfield's share will be \$392,181. Marshfield will make annual payments over 10 (ten) years, starting no later than June 30th of the first fiscal year of their admission to the district (FY25). The annual payment amount will be \$39,218.10. Accelerated payments will be permitted at the discretion of the town of Marshfield.

- b. **Debt:** Notwithstanding any ~~previous existing~~ regional agreement language on debt, the following ~~applies would apply~~ to Marshfield's admission into the district:

1. In its first fiscal year of membership (FY25) Marshfield will not be assessed any debt service.

2. If there is new or existing authorized debt to be paid during Marshfield's second, ~~third, fourth and fifth through eighth~~ fiscal years of membership (FY26-FY32) its debt share will adjust with each fiscal year based on its school enrollment as of the most recent October 1st report, divided by the total in-district school enrollment that year. The resulting annual debt assessment for FY26-FY32 will be used to offset, in proportion, the other member towns' debt assessments that were calculated as per the formula in Sections V.D.(3) and V.D.(4) above

Creating a V.D.(5) scenario for illustration purposes only: Showing how debt shares are calculated prior to FY33. For brevity we are illustrating the process with 3 district towns (A, B, C) plus Marshfield.

- Hypothetical: Pretend that the total debt assessment to be apportioned for FY28 is \$1,000,000.
- Step 1: Calculating Marshfield's debt share:
 - Marshfield's most recent October 1st SIMS enrollment shows that they represent 4% of the total district enrollment
 - Therefore, Marshfield's debt share for that year is 4% of \$1,000,000, or \$40,000.
 - \$40,000 will be used to reduce the debt shares of other member towns, represented by Town A, Town B, and Town C below.
- Step 2: Calculating Town A, B and C's debt shares:

Commented [TH12]: Line 212: Word changes to indicate that previously agreed upon terms are in effect.

Commented [TH13]: Line 214: Change in verb tense

Commented [TH14]: Line 219: Added for more detail.

Commented [TH15]: Line 223: Changed on 8.16.24 from "existing" to "previous" for better clarity

Commented [TH16]: Line 224: Change in verb tense

Commented [TH17]: Line 227: Just clarifies the first fiscal year in district

Commented [TH18]: Line 231: This means that the enrollment share will be calculated annually from the 2nd through the 8th fiscal year of membership (FY26-FY32).

Commented [TH19]: Line 235-238: This sentence clarifies in writing the plan to have Marshfield's debt share used as an offset for the 8 towns. See illustration that follows.

Commented [TH20]: Lines 240-274: Illustration on how we would calculate debt with the other towns and with Marshfield separately and then reconcile the amounts.

Commented [TH21]: Lines 253+ There are 8 towns that would be in this calculation but only three are being used for this example for brevity.

○ Using the formula in V.D.(4), pretend that the following debt shares were calculated without Marshfield's enrollment factored in as of yet:

- Town A's debt share is 16%, or \$160,000
- Town B's debt share is 7%, or \$70,000
- Town C's debt share is 19%, or \$190,000

• As a result of Marshfield's \$40,000 debt assessment, Towns A, B, and C's reductions are recalculated:

- Town A's assessment is reduced by 16% of \$40,000, or \$6,400; Town A's new debt assessment equals \$153,600
- Town B's assessment is reduced by 7% of \$40,000, or \$2,800; Town B's new debt assessment equals \$67,200.
- Town C's assessment is reduced by 19% of \$40,000, or \$7,600; Town C's new debt assessment equals \$122,400.

~~3. If there is new or existing authorized debt to be paid during Marshfield's sixth fiscal year, its debt share will be fixed for the duration of the debt based on its October 1, 2028 enrollment report, divided by the total in-district school enrollment that year.~~

~~4. If there is any new authorized debt to be paid during Marshfield's seventh fiscal year of membership that was not fixed previously in #3 above, its debt share will be fixed based on its school enrollment as of the most recent October 1st report, divided by the total in-district school enrollment that year.~~

~~35. If there is any new or existing authorized debt to be paid during Marshfield's ninth fiscal year of membership (FY33) and beyond beyond that was not fixed previously in #4 above, its debt share shall follow the regional agreement language in Section V.D.(4) which is the same "three-four fiscal year rolling average" fiscal-year look-back process for all district towns.~~

Commented [TH22]: Lines 276-279: This 'fixed share' section is removed now.

Commented [TH23]: Lines 281-285: This 'fixed share' section for the seventh fiscal year is also not needed anymore.

Commented [TH24]: Line 287: Phrase "or existing" added for clarity

Commented [TH25]: Line 288: It will be in the 9th fiscal year that Marshfield will have enrolled students in grades 9-12 for four school years, which is the same enrollment history as the other 8 towns. This is why the FY33 and beyond budget cycles have Marshfield slated to be calculated the same as the other towns.

Commented [TH26]: Lines 289: Phrase deleted because #4 is deleted above as referenced

Commented [TH27]: Lines 291-292: Phrase is revised for accuracy/clarity.

(E) Transportation

School transportation shall be provided by the District and each member town's share shall be apportioned in the same manner as operating costs. The aggregate transportation cost shall be decreased by anticipated regional transportation reimbursement prior to apportioning the costs to the member towns. Each member town's proportionate share of pupil transportation shall be determined based on the number of pupils in grades nine through twelve (9 – 12), inclusive, residing in each member town and receiving education in the District at such town's expense, as reported to DESE in the District's previous October 1st SIMS enrollment submission.

(F) Times of Payment of Apportioned Costs

(1) The Total Assessment to a member town will include its share of the Operating, Transportation, Capital and Debt costs.

(2) Each member town shall pay to the District in each year its proportionate share, certified as provided in subsection V (B), (C), (D) and (E) of the operating, capital, debt, and transportation costs. The annual share of each member town shall be paid in equal installments not later than the first days of August, December, April and June of each fiscal year.

SECTION VI – INCURRING OF DEBT

Not later than seven days after the date on which the Committee authorizes the incurring of debt, other than temporary debt in anticipation of revenue to be received from member towns, written notice of the date of said authorization, the sum authorized, and the general purpose or purposes for authorizing such debt shall be given to the Select Board in each member town.

The Committee may vote to incur debt consistent with the terms and conditions of MGL Chapter 71, Section 16 (d) paragraph 1, Chapter 71, Section 16 (d) paragraph 2, or Chapter 71, Section 16 (n), as amended.

At the time of taking action to incur debt, and except for the incurring of temporary debt in anticipation of revenue, the Committee, by a simple majority vote, shall use Chapter 71, Section 16 (d) paragraph 1 as amended. The Committee, by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of all its members may choose instead to use Chapter 71, Section 16 (n) as amended, or Chapter 71, Section 16 (d) paragraph 2 as amended.

SECTION VII – AMENDMENTS

(A) Limitations

This Agreement may be amended from time to time in the manner hereinafter provided, but no such amendment shall be made which shall substantially impair the rights of the holders of any bonds, notes or other obligations of the District then outstanding, or the rights of the District to procure the means for payment thereof, provided that nothing in this section shall prevent the admission of a new town or towns to the District and the reapportionment accordingly of debt of the District represented by bonds or notes of the District then outstanding and of interest thereon.

(B) Procedure

Any proposal for amendment, except a proposal for amendment providing for the withdrawal of a member town (which shall be acted upon as provided in Section IX), may be initiated by a minimum vote of two-thirds (2/3) members of the Committee or by a separate petition from at least two-thirds (2/3) of the member towns. Such petitions shall be signed by at least one hundred (100) registered voters from each of these two-thirds (2/3) member towns. In the case of a proposal for amendment by petition, the said petition shall also contain, at the end thereof, a certification by the clerk of each member town voting as to the number of signatures in the petition which appear to be the names of registered voters (according to the most recent voting list) from that town; and the said petition shall be presented to the secretary of the Committee. In either case, the secretary

of the Committee shall mail or deliver a notice in writing to the Select Board of each of the member towns that a proposal to amend this Agreement has been made and shall enclose a copy of such amendment (without the signatures in the case of a proposal by petition). The Select Board of each member town shall include in the warrant for the next annual town meeting, or a special town meeting called for the purpose, an article stating the amendment. Such amendment shall take effect upon its acceptance by a minimum of two-thirds (2/3) of the member towns, acceptance by each member town to be by a majority vote at a town meeting as aforesaid. All amendments must be approved by the Commissioner of Elementary and Secondary Education (hereinafter sometimes referred to as the "Commissioner"). An amendment involving a change in the way that the operating and/or capital costs are assessed may not take effect until the July 1 after a minimum of two-thirds (2/3) of the member towns and the Commissioner have approved acceptance by the previous December 31.

SECTION VIII – ADMISSION PROCESS FOR NEW MEMBER TOWNS TO THE DISTRICT

- (A) By an amendment of this Agreement adopted under and in accordance with Section VII above, any other town may be admitted to the District upon adoption as therein provided of such amendment and upon acceptance at a special or annual town meeting by a majority vote by the town seeking admission of the Agreement as so amended, acceptance by a minimum of two-thirds (2/3) of the member towns, each by majority vote, and also upon compliance with such provisions of law and regulations [for example, Code of Massachusetts Regulations; that is, 603 CMR 41.05 (6)] as may be applicable and such terms as may be set forth in such an amendment.
- (B) The Committee, prior to the admittance of a new member town, will have the option establishing the amount of any additional buy-in costs to that new member town to be included in the District. These additional costs will be clearly articulated to the Regional Planning Committee of the potential new member town and will be made clear to voters prior to that new member town's vote on admission to the District.
- (C) A new member town may be admitted to the District as of July 1 of any fiscal year, provided that all requisite approvals for such admission, including the Commissioner's approval, shall be obtained no later than the preceding December 31.

SECTION IX – WITHDRAWAL PROCESS OF MEMBER TOWNS FROM THE DISTRICT

- (A) **Vote Expressing Desire to Withdraw**
Any member town seeking to withdraw from the District shall, by majority vote at an annual or special town meeting, request the Committee to formulate an amendment to this Agreement setting forth the terms by which such town may withdraw from the District. No withdrawal will take effect on other than July 1 of a given year. The vote stated in the preceding sentence, as well as the notification to the District consistent with paragraph B below, must all occur no less than two (2) years prior to the desired date of withdrawal.
- (B) **Notice**

The clerk of the town seeking to withdraw shall, within seven (7) days of the vote, notify the Committee chair as well as the District's superintendent in writing that such town has voted to request the Committee to formulate an amendment to the Agreement (enclosing a certified copy of such vote).

Thereupon, the Committee shall formulate an amendment to the Agreement setting forth such terms of withdrawal as it deems advisable, subject to the limitation contained in Section VII(A). The Committee shall establish a subcommittee to formulate an amendment and invite the Select Board from the requesting member town to designate representatives to said subcommittee.

The secretary of the Committee shall mail or deliver a notice in writing to the Select Board of each member town that the Committee has formulated an amendment to the Agreement reflecting the withdrawal of a member town (enclosing a copy of such amendment). The Select Board of each member town shall include in the warrant for the next annual or a special town meeting called for the purpose an article stating the amendment.

(C) Obligations of Withdrawing Member Towns

In addition to other terms and requirements which the Committee shall include in the amendment, the member town seeking to withdraw will be responsible for the following: (1) payment of all operating costs for which it is liable as a member of the District; (2) continuing payments beyond the time of withdrawal to the District for the member town's share of the indebtedness of the District which is outstanding at the time of such withdrawal, and for interest thereon, to the same extent and in the same manner as though the town had not withdrawn from the District; (3) other liabilities incurred during all times that the town was a member of the District (e.g., OPEB – Other Post-Employment Benefits); and (4) for the costs, including legal fees, that accrue to the District as a result of the withdrawal process.

(D) Approval of Withdrawal

A request to withdraw shall become effective only if the amendment to the Agreement is approved by a majority vote of the membership of the Committee, is approved by majority vote at an annual or special town meeting in a minimum of two-thirds (2/3) of the member towns, is approved by the Commissioner, and the withdrawal can become effective no less than one full year after the completion of these requirements. The withdrawal will be effective as of July 1 of any fiscal year, provided that all requisite approvals for such withdrawal, including the Commissioner's approval, shall be obtained no later than the preceding December 31.

(E) Cessation of Terms of Office of Members of Withdrawing Town

Upon the effective date of withdrawal, the terms of office of all members serving on the Committee from the withdrawing town shall terminate and the total membership of the Committee shall be decreased accordingly.

SECTION X – TUITION STUDENTS

The Committee may accept for enrollment in the District pupils from towns other than the member towns on a tuition basis. Income received by the District from tuition pupils will be treated by the

450 Committee according to MGL Chapter 71, Section 16D1/2.

451

452 **SECTION XI – ANNUAL REPORT**

453

454 The Committee shall submit in January an annual report to each of the member towns containing
455 information to publish in the annual town reports that highlights District events and activities.

456

457

458 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement has been executed as of [].

459

460 Regional Vocational School Committee Chair

461 [Insert Typed Name] _____ Signature Date

462

463 Town of Abington

464 [Insert Typed Name] [Insert title] Signature Date

465

466 Town of Cohasset

467 [Insert Typed Name] [Insert title] Signature Date

468

469 Town of Hanover

470 [Insert Typed Name] [Insert title] Signature Date

471

472 Town of Hanson

473 [Insert Typed Name] [Insert title] Signature Date

474

475 Town of Marshfield

476 [Insert Typed Name] [Insert title] Signature Date

477

478 Town of Norwell

479 [Insert Typed Name] [Insert title] Signature Date

480

481 Town of Rockland

482 [Insert Typed Name] [Insert title] Signature Date

483

484 Town of Scituate

485 [Insert Typed Name] [Insert title] Signature Date

486

487 Town of Whitman

488 [Insert Typed Name] [Insert title] Signature Date

489

490 Approved by Department of Elementary and Secondary Education Commissioner

491 [Insert Typed Name] ~~Jeffrey C. Riley~~ Signature Date

492

493

Commented [TH28]: Line 491: To be updated based on the Commissioner at the time of the signing